University of Vermont ScholarWorks @ UVM

Transportation Research Center Research Reports

4-1-2019

Identifying Roadway Physical Characteristics that Contribute to Emissions Differences between Hybrid and Conventional Vehicles

James Sullivan University of Vermont, james.sullivan@uvm.edu

Karen Sentoff University of Vermont

Follow this and additional works at: https://scholarworks.uvm.edu/trc

Recommended Citation

Sullivan, James and Sentoff, Karen, "Identifying Roadway Physical Characteristics that Contribute to Emissions Differences between Hybrid and Conventional Vehicles" (2019). *Transportation Research Center Research Reports.* 8. https://scholarworks.uvm.edu/trc/8

This Report is brought to you for free and open access by ScholarWorks @ UVM. It has been accepted for inclusion in Transportation Research Center Research Reports by an authorized administrator of ScholarWorks @ UVM. For more information, please contact donna.omalley@uvm.edu.

UC Davis Research Reports

Title

Identifying Roadway Physical Characteristics that Contribute to Emissions Differences between Hybrid and Conventional Vehicles

Permalink https://escholarship.org/uc/item/4j92c547

Authors

Sullivan, James L. Sentoff, Karen M.

Publication Date

2019-04-01

DOI

10.7922/G2S75DHF

Data Availability

The data associated with this publication are available at: <u>https://doi.org/10.15146/R36975</u>

Identifying Roadway Physical Characteristics that Contribute to Emissions Differences between Hybrid and Conventional Vehicles

April 2019

A Research Report from the National Center for Sustainable Transportation

James L. Sullivan, University of Vermont Karen M. Sentoff, University of Vermont





TECHNICAL REPORT DOCUMENTATION PAGE

1. Report No.	2. Gover	nment Accessio	on No.	3. Re	cipient's Catalog No				
NCST-UVM-RR-19-05	N/A			N/A					
4. Title and Subtitle				5. Re	port Date				
Identifying Roadway Physical Characteristics	s that Cont	ribute to Emiss	ions	April	2019				
Differences between Hybrid and Conventior	nal Vehicle	S		6. Pe	rforming Organizati	on Code			
				N/A					
7. Author(s)				8. Performing Organization Report No.					
James L. Sullivan, https://orcid.org/0000-00	02-4435-9		N/A						
Karen M. Sentoff, https://orcid.org/0000-00	02-1108-6	5474							
9. Performing Organization Name and Add	ress			10. W	/ork Unit No.				
University of Vermont				N/A					
Transportation Research Center			Γ	11. C	ontract or Grant No				
Farrell Hall				USDC)T Grant 69A355174	7114			
210 Colchester Avenue, Burlington, VT 0540)5								
12. Sponsoring Agency Name and Address				13. Ty	ype of Report and P	eriod Covered			
U.S. Department of Transportation				Final	Report (September	2017 – July			
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Researc	h and Tec	hnology		2018))				
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE, Washington, E	DC 20590			14. Sponsoring Agency Code					
		USDOT OST-R							
15. Supplementary Notes									
DOI:10.7922/G2S75DHF									
Dataset DOI: 10.15146/R36975									
16. Abstract									
In this study, a second-by-second (SbS) data	set obtair	ned from monite	oring vehicle emis	ssions	over a series of 75 t	est runs from 2			
test vehicles (a conventional vehicle (CV) an	d a hybrid	-electric vehicle	e (HEV)) over an 18	8-mon	th period in 2010-20	011 during real-			
world on-road operations on a specified 32-	mile route	e in Chittenden	County, Vermont	was u	sed in an innovative	new method of			
analysis to assess emissions differences betw	ween the t	wo propulsion s	systems and attrib	bute tł	nese differences to p	physical			
roadway/infrastructure characteristics. The	K-S test w	as used to asses	ss the difference b	betwe	en the cumulative d	istributions of			
the CV and HEV emissions samples on each	link, and t	he K-S test stati	stic was regressed	d agair	nst the full set of roa	idway link			
characteristics. The regression results allow	ed the tea	m to identify sp	ecific roadway cha	aracte	eristics that contribu	te to emissions			
differences between the vehicle types. Over	rall, the mo	odels that inclue	ded maximum gra	ade an	d intersection contro	ol type			
performed best, however speed limit and he	orizontal c	urvature were a	also shown to be i	import	tant. The performan	ce differences			
identified in this project confirm that engine	e controls	that are respon	sive to roadway cł	haract	eristics are necessa	ry.			
17. Key Words			18. Distribution	State	ment				
Second-by-second emissions, road grade, in	tersection	No restrictions.							
speed, horizontal curvature, hybrid electric	vehicles, K	-S test							
19. Security Classif. (of this report)		20. Security C	lassif. (of this pag	ge)	21. No. of Pages	22. Price			
Unclassified		Unclassified			20	N/A			
Form DOT F 1700.7 (8-72)			Re	eprod	uction of completed	page authorized			



About the National Center for Sustainable Transportation

The National Center for Sustainable Transportation is a consortium of leading universities committed to advancing an environmentally sustainable transportation system through cutting-edge research, direct policy engagement, and education of our future leaders. Consortium members include: University of California, Davis; University of California, Riverside; University of Southern California; California State University, Long Beach; Georgia Institute of Technology; and University of Vermont. More information can be found at: <u>ncst.ucdavis.edu</u>.

Disclaimer

The contents of this report reflect the views of the authors, who are responsible for the facts and the accuracy of the information presented herein. This document is disseminated in the interest of information exchange. The report is funded, partially or entirely, by a grant from the U.S. Department of Transportation's University Transportation Centers Program. However, the U.S. Government assumes no liability for the contents or use thereof.

Acknowledgments

This study was funded, partially or entirely, by a grant from the National Center for Sustainable Transportation (NCST), supported by USDOT through the University Transportation Centers program. The authors would like to thank the NCST and USDOT for their support of university-based research in transportation, and especially for the funding provided in support of this project. The authors would also like to acknowledge the invaluable contributions of Dr. Britt A. Holmén, Professor in the Department of Civil & Environmental Engineering at the University of Vermont, on this project.



Identifying Roadway Physical Characteristics that Contribute to Emissions Differences between Hybrid and Conventional Vehicles

A National Center for Sustainable Transportation Research Report

April 2019

James L. Sullivan, Transportation Center, University of Vermont Karen M. Sentoff, Transportation Center, University of Vermont



[page intentionally left blank]



TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	ii
Introduction	. 1
Background	. 1
Data Analysis Methodology	. 3
Results	. 4
Emissions Difference by Link	. 4
Emissions Differences and Link Characteristics	. 4
Influence of Intersection Control	. 5
Conclusions	. 6
Limitations	. 7
References	. 8
Data Management	. 9



Identifying Roadway Physical Characteristics that Contribute to Emissions Differences between Hybrid and Conventional Vehicles

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The research described in this report helps researchers and modelers understand the differences between conventional and hybrid-electric vehicle in terms of emissions within different parts of the transportation system. This knowledge will in turn be useful for future programming of smart propulsion vehicles so that their operation can result in minimized emissions and net energy consumption, the latter of significance for electric vehicle range and eco-driving. In this study, a second-by-second (SbS) data set obtained from monitoring vehicle performance and emissions over a series of 75 test runs from 2 test vehicles (a conventional vehicle (CV) and a hybrid-electric vehicle (HEV)) over an 18-month period in 2010-2011 during real-world on-road operations on a specified 32-mile route in Chittenden County Vermont. An innovative new method of analysis allowed the assessment of emissions differences between the two propulsion systems and the attribution of these differences to physical roadway/infrastructure characteristics. The K-S test was used to assess the difference between the cumulative distribution functions (CDFs) of the CV and HEV emissions samples on each link. The application of the K-S test resulted in a hypothesis test result, an asymptotic p-value, and the test statistic, D*.

The test statistic was regressed against the full set of roadway link characteristics. The multiregression results allowed the team to identify the specific roadway characteristics that contribute to emissions differences between the vehicle types. A step-wise, reductive regression was conducted, with D* as the independent variable and the road link physical characteristics in as the dependent variables:

- Grade (%)
- Speed Limit (mph)
- One-Way Lane + Shoulder Width (ft.)
- Width of the Median (ft.)
- Lanes Each Way
- One-Way Capacity (vph)
- One-Way Daily Capacity (vpd)
- 2010 AADT (both ways) (vpd)
- 2010 AADT/Daily Capacity (both ways)
- Horizontal Curvature (degrees)

To explore the relationship between emissions rates and the 9 intersection-control/turningmovement types at the beginning and end of each link, each of these control types was applied



in a cross-classification model. Each control type was cross-classified with the variables from the regression models with the highest t-scores. The average D* was calculated for each cross-classified category and this value was used to calculate a residual for each of the 80 links in the study. From the residual, an R-squared was calculated for each of the cross-classification models.

Results of the final regression models for each of the 7 pollutants, including each estimated coefficient (β), its associated t-score, and the adjusted R-squared of each model, are provided in Table ES-1.

	C	0	C	D 2	Р	N	В	Z	Ν	0	N	O 2	HC	НО
Variable	β	t	β	t	β	t	β	t	β	t	β	t	β	t
Speed Limit	n	а	-0.01	-5.97	-0.00	-3.85	-0.01	-6.40	-0.01	-6.18	-0.01	-5.88	-0.01	-6.30
Maximum Grade	-0.01	-2.84	-0.02	-4.75	-0.02	-4.68	-0.02	-4.84	-0.03	-5.21	-0.02	-4.68	-0.02	-4.61
Horizontal Curvature	-0.01	-2.15	-0.02	-3.64	-0.01	-3.65	-0.02	-3.74	-0.02	-4.02	-0.01	-3.63	-0.02	-3.61
Constant	0.50	36.1	0.90	16.1	0.56	13.0	0.89	16.0	0.87	16.4	0.76	15.4	0.88	16.2
Adjusted R- squared	0.	13	0.4	49	0.4	40	0.	51	0.	52	0.4	48	0.4	49
na – Speed limit was not found to be significant in the final regression model for CO														

Table ES-1. Results of Final Regression Models

The negative signs on the coefficients of each dependent variable indicate that increasing the magnitude of these coefficients (higher speed limits, steeper grades, and sharper curves) contributes to decreased differences in emissions between the two vehicle types. This finding confirms that the greatest emissions differences occur when the CV and HEV vehicles are least challenged by the physical infrastructure.

Each control type was cross-classified with the strongest variables from the regression models – speed limit and maximum grade. For the cross-classification, speed limit was divided into 2 categories (low and high) and maximum grade was divided into 4 (negative, flat, low positive, and high positive). The average D* was calculated for each cross-classified category and this value was used to calculate a residual for each of the 80 links in the study. From the residual, an R-squared was calculated for each of the cross-classification models and compared to the R-squared for the regression models, as shown in Table ES-2.



	Cross-Classific	cation Models	Multi-Regression Models (Table ES-1)					
Emission Type	Speed Limit x Control Type	Max Grade x Control Type	Speed Limit, Max Grade, and Horizontal Curvature Regression					
СО	0.25	0.36	0.13					
CO2	0.44	0.62	0.49					
PN	0.37	0.57	0.40					
BZ	0.46	0.66	0.51					
NO	0.44	0.64	0.52					
NO ₂	0.44	0.65	0.48					
НСНО	0.45	0.65	0.49					

Table ES-2. R-squared values for the cross-classification models and regression models

Overall, the cross-classified model with maximum grade and control type performed best, based on R-squared values from 0.36 to 0.66. The results in Table ES-2 indicate that the combination of intersection controls and turning movements at each end of the link is significant in determining emissions differences between the two vehicle types. Control types 1, 2, and 6 led to the highest values of D*, indicating differences in emissions between the CV and HEV vehicle types where links have:

- 1. Stop-Sign/Turn to Stop-Sign/Turn
- 2. Thru-Signal to Stop-Sign/Turn
- 6. Thru-Signal to Thru-Signal

This finding indicates that the effect of traffic controls must also be considered when modeling the effect of roadway infrastructure on SbS emissions from CVs vs HEVs.

The performance differences identified in this project confirm that engine-switching controls that are responsive to roadway characteristics are necessary. It should also be recognized that the results have direct implications for fuel consumption by electrified vehicles due to the results obtained here for CO_2 (CO_2 and fuel consumption being closely related via mass balance). However, future research is needed to refine the mapping of roadway characteristics to emission rates under a variety of engine control strategies for HEVs. It is not clear what control strategies for a HEV ICE would reduce emissions the most as these roadway characteristics between a strategy that is optimized for performance (without regard to roadway characteristics), a strategy that is optimized for fuel economy (without regard to roadway



characteristics), and a strategy that is optimized to minimize emissions by responding to the oncoming roadway characteristics. This type of evaluation will provide definitive evidence of the need for responsiveness to the roadway characteristics, as well as providing an initial understanding of specific engine-control strategy needed to control the propulsion of a HEV to reduce emissions and fuel consumption.



Introduction

The research described in this report helps researchers and modelers understand the differences between conventional and hybrid-electric vehicles in terms of emissions within different parts of the transportation system. This knowledge will in turn be useful for future programming of smart propulsion vehicles so that their operation can result in minimized emissions and net energy consumption, the latter of significance for electric vehicle range and eco-driving. This report summarizes research findings that are detailed in an upcoming journal article.

In this study, a second-by-second (SbS) data set obtained from monitoring vehicle performance and emissions over a series of 75 test runs from 2 test vehicles (a conventional vehicle (CV) and a hybrid-electric vehicle (HEV)) over an 18-month period in 2010-2011 during real-world onroad operations on a specified 32-mile route in Chittenden County Vermont. An innovative new method of analysis allowed the assessment of emissions differences between the two propulsion systems and the attribution of these differences to physical roadway/infrastructure characteristics.

The objectives of this research are to improve our understanding of the differences in emission rates associated with the time-varying use of an internal-combustion engine (e.g., full-time use in the CV and part-time use in the HEV) and to relate these differences to physical characteristics of the roadway.

The Kolmogorov–Smirnov (K-S) test, a nonparametric test used to compare two samples, was used to analyze the relationship between emissions differences and roadway physical characteristics. The advantage of the K-S test is that all data contribute to the test result, making it useful for very large datasets like SbS driving data, but the data sets do not need to be paired, nor do their distributional forms need to be identical. The K-S test yields a continuous test statistic that was then used directly to develop regression models of emissions differences for varied physical roadway characteristics. Understanding these differences, and the roadway characteristics that cause them, is critical to the minimization of emissions by autonomous CVs and HEVs.

Background

This study takes advantage of a unique data set consisting of SbS emission rates from two lightduty gasoline passenger cars of the same make and model (Toyota Camry) but different propulsion systems (CV and HEV). This data set consists of 130,305 records, each representing a SbS measurement of the following:

- Position of the vehicle (Latitude/Longitude)
- An integer (1-75) representing the test run number
- A binary integer representing the vehicle type, either the CV (1) or the HEV (2)
- The benzene (BZ) emission rate (µg/sec)



- The carbon monoxide (CO) emission rate (mg/sec)
- The carbon dioxide (CO₂) emission rate (mg/sec)
- The formaldehyde (HCHO) emission rate (µg/sec)
- The nitrogen monoxide (NO) emission rate (µg/sec)
- The nitrogen dioxide (NO₂) emission rate (µg/sec)
- The particle number (PN) emission rate (#/sec)
- The link ID needed to map the emissions data to the GIS
- The functional class of the roadway

CVs and HEVs will be the dominant vehicle propulsion systems for the foreseeable future, so quantitative understanding of their differential emissions at the link level is important but understudied. Although many states are implementing new policies aimed at increasing the market penetration of full electric vehicles (EVs) (VDPS, 2016), most of these policies are targeted at new vehicle sales. Penetration of EVs into the privately-owned passenger-vehicle fleet in the U.S will lag behind new vehicle sales, depending on the average age of the fleet. Some recent studies showing that owners are keeping their vehicles longer in the U.S. (LeBeau, 2015), means fleet penetration will lag farther behind new vehicle sales than originally anticipated. The most ambitious global forecasts predict new EV sales in the light-duty market making up about 70% of all new vehicle sales by 2050 (Rissman, 2017), but the International Energy Agency (IEA) only estimates that figure translating to a stock share of about 40% (IEA, 2016).

Researchers have established the relationship between instantaneous vehicle-specific power (VSP), or the road load that resists vehicle propulsion, and resulting tailpipe emissions from a vehicle overcoming the resisting load. This field of work was built on the original presentation of VSP and its relationship to tailpipe emissions measurements presented in a dissertation by Jiménez-Palacios (1999). A decade later, the concept was adopted by the EPA as one basis for the MOVES mobile source emissions model. Others have established the sensitivity of VSP and emissions to road grade and have validated sources of elevation and road-grade data, like Light Detection and Ranging data (LIDAR), for the purposes of including road grade in vehicle activity calculations (Zhang & Frey, 2006). MOVES still lacks the capability of modeling HEVs.

Models that best represent vehicle activity and account for various activity scenarios, such as lead vehicle activity, car-following constraints, collision avoidance, etc., have been established and incorporated into microsimulation models. Efforts to refine these models to improve aspects such as maximum accelerations of light-duty (Rakha et. al., 2004) or heavy-duty vehicles (Rakha et. al., 2001), driver anticipation in car-following (Kesting and Treiber, 2008), and inter-driver variability in car-following (Ossen et. al., 2006), have all been supported by the use of field data to identify anomalies not accounted for in the current modeling procedures. Further, no microsimulation capable of calibrated HEVs operation are known. HEVs will have different power/weight ratios and corresponding differences in acceleration and VSP.



Recent efforts have calibrated microsimulation models specifically for the purpose of emissions modeling, with emphasis on vehicle activity calibration parameters as opposed to prior use of traffic simulation metrics, like queue lengths and travel times. For instance, recent work on vehicle speeds and accelerations (Jie et. al., 2013) or acceleration near target speed (Talbot et. al., 2014) emphasize the relationship between vehicle activity and emissions. Jie et. al. (2013) used a technique to minimize the difference between the simulated and observed cumulative probability distributions of vehicle activity parameters to achieve the best-fit speed, acceleration, and deceleration models (Jie et. al., 2013). A similar method is used in this study.

Data Analysis Methodology

The SbS data was tagged to the road link the test vehicle was traversing to connect SbS emissions rates to the physical characteristics of the roadway. A shapefile of these data is included in the electronic project data transmittal. This connection allowed the emissions rates from each vehicle (CV or HEV) for the seven pollutants to be compared using the K-S test, by link.

The K-S test was used to assess the difference between the cumulative distribution functions (CDFs) of the CV and HEV emissions samples on each link. The K-S test is a nonparametric hypothesis test (Mathworks, 2015) with test statistic D*, the maximum absolute difference between the cumulative distributions:

$$D^* = \max_{x} \left(\left| \hat{F}_1(x) - \hat{F}_2(x) \right| \right)$$

The application of the K-S test resulted in a hypothesis test result, an asymptotic p-value, and the test statistic, D*. The test statistic was regressed against the full set of roadway link characteristics. The multiple linear regression was conducted in TransCAD, using its linear regression model estimation tool. The least squares estimation procedure produces coefficients for each independent variable of interest, along with goodness-of-fit measures. The goodness-of-fit measures computed by the regression procedure include an analysis of variance table, an R-squared measure that tests the overall explanatory power of the model, a standard error of the estimate and a test of the significance of each parameter (t-score). The t-score is the ratio of the parameter to its standard error. A ratio of about 2 or above is considered significant to 95% confidence. The multi-regression results therefore allowed the team to identify the specific roadway characteristics that contribute to emissions differences between the vehicle types.

To explore the relationship between emissions rates and the 9 intersection-control/turningmovement types at the beginning and end of each link, each of these control types was applied in a cross-classification model (Ortuzar and Willumsen, 2011). Each control type was crossclassified with the variables from the regression models with the highest t-scores. The average D* was calculated for each cross-classified category and this value was used to calculate a residual for each of the 80 links in the study. From the residual, an R-squared was calculated for each of the cross-classification models.



Results

Emissions Difference by Link

Cumulative distributions (CDs) of the CO, CO2, PN, BZ, NO, NO2, and HCHO emissions rate distributions for each vehicle type (CV and HEV) for all 80 links compared by link using the K-S test established differences between the two propulsion systems. The CDs for the HEV was generally behind the CDs for the CV, as expected due to its generally lower emissions profiles. Significant differences between the CV and HEV were noted along multi-link corridors with downgrades or flat grades with few traffic controls.

Emissions Differences and Link Characteristics

To further evaluate this hypothesis, a step-wise, reductive regression was conducted, with D* as the independent variable and the road link physical characteristics in as the dependent variables:

- Grade (%)
- Speed Limit (mph)
- One-Way Lane + Shoulder Width (ft.)
- Width of the Median (ft.)
- Lanes Each Way
- One-Way Capacity (vph)
- One-Way Daily Capacity (vpd)
- 2010 AADT (both ways) (vpd)
- 2010 AADT / Daily Capacity (both ways)
- Horizontal Curvature (degrees)

Variables were removed from the regression if their t-scores were lower than 2.0, corresponding to a confidence interval of approximately 95%. The only variables that remained in the final models for each of the 7 pollutants were speed limit, maximum grade, and degree of horizontal curvature. Correlation coefficients between the 3 final dependent variables are 0.05, 0.01, and -0.01, so their independence is well established. Results of the final regression models for each of the 7 pollutants, including each estimated coefficient (β), its associated t-score, and the adjusted R-squared of each model, are provided in Table 1.



	(0	С	O 2	F	N	E	3Z	Ν	10	N	02	нс	Ю
	β	t	β	t	β	t	β	β	t	β	t	β	t	β
Speed Limit	I	na	-0.01	-5.97	-0.00	-3.85	-0.01	-6.40	-0.01	-6.18	-0.01	-5.88	-0.01	-6.30
Maximum Grade	-0.01	-2.84	-0.02	-4.75	-0.02	-4.68	-0.02	-4.84	-0.03	-5.21	-0.02	-4.68	-0.02	-4.61
Horizontal Curvature	-0.01	-2.15	-0.02	-3.64	-0.01	-3.65	-0.02	-3.74	-0.02	-4.02	-0.01	-3.63	-0.02	-3.61
Constant	0.50	36.1	0.90	16.1	0.56	13.0	0.89	16.0	0.87	16.4	0.76	15.4	0.88	16.2
Adjusted R- squared	0	.13	0.	49	0.	40	0.	51	0.	.52	0.	.48	0.	49
na – Speed li	mit wa	s not f	ound t	o be si	gnifica	nt in th	ne fina	l regre	ssion n	nodel f	or CO			

Table 1. Results of Final Regression Models

The negative signs on the coefficients of each dependent variable in Table 1 indicate that increasing the magnitude of these coefficients (higher speed limits, steeper grades, and sharper curves) contributes to decreased differences in emissions between the two vehicle types. This finding confirms that the greatest emissions differences occur when the CV and HEV vehicles are least challenged by the physical infrastructure. In other words, the challenges of traveling at higher speed, climbing a hill, or navigating a sharp curve cause the CV and HEV to have similar emissions patterns. Along the test route, 31% of the roadway length had a speed limit of 55 mph or above, 24% of the roadway length had an uphill grade of 5% or above, and 18% of the roadway length had a degree of horizontal curvature greater than 5, so these differences are significant to cumulative vehicle emissions in a typical driving environment.

Influence of Intersection Control

Each control type was cross-classified with the strongest variables from the regression models – speed limit and maximum grade. For the cross-classification, speed limit was divided into 2 categories (low and high) and maximum grade was divided into 4 (negative, flat, low positive, and high positive). The average D* was calculated for each cross-classified category and this value was used to calculate a residual for each of the 80 links in the study. From the residual, an R-squared was calculated for each of the cross-classification models and compared to the R-squared for the regression models, as shown in Table 2.



	Cross-Classific	cation Models	Multi-Regression Models (Table 1)					
Emission Type	Speed Limit x Control Type	Max Grade x Control Type	Speed Limit, Max Grade, and Horizontal Curvature Regression					
СО	0.25	0.36	0.13					
CO ₂	0.44	0.62	0.49					
PN	0.37	0.57	0.40					
BZ	0.46	0.66	0.51					
NO	0.44	0.64	0.52					
NO ₂	0.44	0.65	0.48					
нсно	0.45	0.65	0.49					

Table 2. R-squared values for the cross-classification models and regression models

These calculations are provided in the electronic project data transmittal. Overall, the crossclassified model with maximum grade and control type performed best, based on R-squared values from 0.36 to 0.66. The results in Table 2 indicate that the combination of intersection controls and turning movements at each end of the link is significant in determining emissions differences between the two vehicle types. Control types 1, 2, and 6 led to the highest values of D*, indicating differences in emissions between the CV and HEV vehicle types where links have:

- 1. Stop-Sign/Turn to Stop-Sign/Turn
- 2. Thru-Signal to Stop-Sign/Turn
- 6. Thru-Signal to Thru-Signal

This finding indicates that the effect of traffic controls must also be considered when modeling the effect of roadway infrastructure on SbS emissions from CVs vs. HEVs.

Conclusions

The objective of this research was to improve understanding of the differences in tailpipe emissions from the variable use of an internal-combustion engine—full-time use in the CV and part-time use in the HEV—and to relate these differences to physical characteristics of the roadway. A step-wise, reductive regression (conducted with the K-S test statistic as the independent variable and the physical characteristics as the dependent variables) showed that emission rates differences could be adequately modeled based on link speed limit, maximum grade, and degree of horizontal curvature. Increasing the magnitude of these variables (higher speed limits, steeper grades, and sharper curves) contributed to decreased differences in



emissions between the CV and HEV, showing that times when the HEV's ICE was off resulted in the greatest differences between vehicles. Conversely, the challenges of traveling at higher speed, climbing a hill, or navigating a sharp curve caused the vehicles to behave more similarly in terms of emissions, likely because the HEV's ICE is constantly on under higher VSP operating conditions.

To explore the relationship between emissions rates and 9 intersection-control/turningmovement link classifications, each control type was cross-classified with the most significant regression model variables (speed limit and maximum grade) in a cross-classification model. The cross-classified model of maximum grade and control type performed best, indicating the importance of including the combination of intersection controls and turning movements at each end of the link on emissions differences between CV and HEV. For future applications to a more electrified vehicle fleet, the effect of traffic controls must be considered when modeling the effect of roadway infrastructure on SbS emissions.

The performance differences identified in this project confirm that engine-switching controls that are responsive to roadway characteristics are necessary. It should also be recognized that the results have direct implications for fuel consumption by electrified vehicles due to the results obtained here for CO2 (CO2 and fuel consumption being closely related via mass balance). However, future research is needed to refine the mapping of roadway characteristics to emissions rates under a variety of engine control strategies for HEVs. It is not clear what control strategies for an HEV would reduce emissions the most as these roadway characteristics are encountered. Additional research can seek to modify the control strategies between a strategy that is optimized for performance (without regard to roadway characteristics), a strategy that is optimized for fuel economy (without regard to roadway characteristics), and a strategy that is optimized to minimize emissions by responding to the oncoming roadway characteristics. This type of evaluation will provide definitive evidence of the need for responsiveness to the roadway characteristics, as well as providing an initial understanding of specific engine-control strategy needed to control the propulsion of a HEV to reduce emissions and fuel consumption.

Limitations

A key explanatory variable that is missing from this analysis is the traffic conditions when the test runs were conducted. HEVs perform differently than CVs in various traffic conditions, and this can't really be tied to infrastructure, but including roadway congestion in a similar future analysis would resolve this gap. Real-time indicators of traffic congestion may be equally important for engine-control strategies as the physical characteristics of the roadway. Improving the engine-control aspect of HEV operation will require these types of real-time information in the on-board energy strategy.



References

IEA, 2016. Energy Technology Perspectives 2016: Towards Sustainable Energy Systems. OECD/IEA, Paris.

Jie, L., Van Zuylen, H., Chen, Y., Viti, F., and Wilmink, I., 2013. Calibration of a microscopic simulation model for emission calculation. Transportation Research Part C: Emerging Technologies, 31, 172–184.

Jiménez-Palacios, J. L., 1999. Understanding and Quantifying Motor Vehicle Emissions with Vehicle Specific Power and TILDAS Remote Sensing. Doctorate Dissertation, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Massachusetts Institute of Technology.

Kesting, A. and M. Treiber, 2008. Calibrating Car-Following Models by Using Trajectory Data: Methodological Study. Transp. Res. Rec. J. Transp. Res. Board 2008, 2088, 148–156.

LeBeau, Phil, 2015. Americans holding onto their cars longer than ever. CNBC on 29 July 2015.

Mathworks, 2015. MATLAB R2015a Documentation: kstest2, Two-sample Kolmogorov-Smirnov test. Prepared by Mathworks, Inc. of Natick, Massachusetts.

Ortuzar, Juan de Dios, and Luis G. Willumsen, 2011. Modelling Transport, 4th Edition. Published by John Wiley & Sons, Ltd, June 2011.

Ossen, S., S. Hoogendoorn, and B. Gorte, 2006. Interdriver Differences in Car-Following: A Vehicle Trajectory-Based Study. Transp. Res. Rec. J. Transp. Res. Board 2006, 1965, 121–129.

Rakha, H., I. Lucic, S. Demarchi, J. Setti, and M. Aerde, 2001. Vehicle Dynamics Model for Predicting Maximum Truck Acceleration Levels. J. Transp. Eng. 2001, 127, 418–425.

Rakha, H., M. Snare, and F. Dion, 2004. Vehicle Dynamics Model for Estimating Maximum Light-Duty Vehicle Acceleration Levels. Transp. Res. Rec. J. Transp. Res. Board 2004, 1883, 40–49.

Rissman, Jeffrey, 2017. The Future of Electric Vehicles in the U.S. Energy Innovation: Policy and Technology Contributor for Forbes, September 14, 2017.

Talbot, E., R. Chamberlin, B. A. Holmén, and K. M. Sentoff, 2014. Calibrating a Traffic Microsimulation Model to Real-World Operating Mode Distributions. Transportation Research Board 93rd Annual Meeting, Washington, DC.

VDPS, 2016. Vermont Comprehensive Energy Plan 2016. Prepared by the Vermont Department of Public Service, January 2016.

Zhang, K., and Frey, H. C., 2006. Road Grade Estimation for On-Road Vehicle Emissions Modeling Using Light Detection and Ranging Data. Journal of the Air & Waste Management Association, 56(6), 777–788.



Data Management

Products of Research

This project leveraged prior UTC-funded work that developed methods and unique databases of second-by-second (SbS) on-board vehicle emissions data for estimating emissions differences between conventional vehicles and hybrid-electric vehicles. The team used SbS emissions data obtained from a series of 75 test runs driven by a single driver over 18 months in 2010 and 2011, across all seasons and at a variety of hours in the day. The suites of emissions data collected during the test runs were isolated by the road segment the vehicle was traversing at the time. Spatial processes were used to associate the emissions data with the characteristics of the roadway on which the vehicle was operating at the time, by assigning each emissions data point a Road Segment ID. For each road segment in the project, then, the following data is available:

- ID TransCAD native feature ID
- Dir Link direction: 0 two-way; 1, -1 one-way
- Length Link length (miles)
- SP2 Link ID Link ID corresponding to this study data
- LINK_NAME Name of roadway represented by the link
- Daily_Cap Daily roadway capacity (vehicles per day)
- Hourly_Cap Hourly roadway capacity (vehicles per hour)
- SPEED_LIMIT Speed limit (mph)
- AADT Annualized Average Daily Traffic for 2010 (from traffic counts)
- AADT/Daily_Cap AADT / Daily roadway capacity
- GRADE_min Minimum grade (%) on the roadway represented by the link
- GRADE_max Maximum grade (%) on the roadway represented by the link
- GRADE_avg Average grade (%) on the roadway represented by the link
- HC Degree Horizontal curvature (degrees)
- Lane Width Lane width (ft)
- Shoulder Width Right shoulder width (ft)
- Lane + Shoulder Width of the travelled way (lane + shoulder)
- Median Width Width of the roadway median (null if none)
- Lanes Each Way Number of lanes of travel in each direction
- Control_Type Intersection- control / turning-movement type at each end of the link (1 thru 9)
- Speed_Limit_Cat Speed limit category (low/high) for cross-classification analysis
- L+S_Cat Maximum grade category (negative, flat, low positive, and high positive) for cross-classification analysis



The distributions of specific SbS emissions data were compared using the K-S test, resulting in a D* statistics for each link in the study. These data were regressed against the physical characteristics above.

Data Format and Content

These datasets are in a fixed-format binary file (.bin) or a database file (.dbf) that is associated with a shapefile. Metadata for the fields in the shapefile are contained in a MS Excel file called "Links Metadata." The D* statistics and the results of the cross-classification modeling are contained in a MS Excel file called "Cross-Classification Analysis."

Data Access and Sharing

Sullivan, James; Sentoff, Karen (2019), Identifying Roadway Physical Characteristics that Contribute to Emissions Differences between Hybrid and Conventional Vehicles, DataONE Dash, Dataset, <u>https://doi.org/10.15146/R36975</u>

Reuse and Redistribution

Intellectual property rights for the work conducted under this project are held by the Principal Investigator and the University of Vermont. These rights are not be transferred to the data archive. However, none of the data is subject to copyright protections. Reuse or redistribution without attribution to the researchers as shown in the Data Access and Sharing above is prohibited.

